
 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Tuesday, September 03, 2024 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Ward 2 Director Laney Harris  

Pledge of Allegiance led by Texarkana Regional Airport Director Paul Mehrlich 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

2. Presentation of the quarterly financial report and the Director's report for the Texarkana 

Regional Airport Budget. (AIRPORT) Executive Director of Aviation Paul Mehrlich 

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting August 19, 2024. (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt a Resolution to amend Resolution No. 2024-61, the FY2025 Airport Budget to include 

the removal of the real estate position. (AIRPORT) Director Paul Mehrlich 

5. Adopt a Resolution approving the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY2024-2025 Budget.  

(TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith and Finance Director Tricia Briggs 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 



 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, September 16, 2024 

ADJOURN 

 

2024 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmers Market - Open Tuesdays, Thursdays & Saturdays 7AM - Noon 

 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Live to the Beat - 9AM-10AM - Monday through Friday 

Ageless Grace - Mondays & Thursdays – 2PM - 3PM 

The Fabric Shop - Thursdays - 8AM - 2PM 

Quilters - Fridays - 9AM - 3PM 

Gym Open - Daily - 3PM - 5PM 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: September 3, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

Hortense Shivers TAPD Receptionist 25 Years 

James Atkinson TWU 5 Years 

Tyanthony Jones TWU 5 Years 

   

   
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the quarterly financial report and the Director's report for 

the Texarkana Regional Airport Budget. (AIRPORT) Executive Director 

of Aviation Paul Mehrlich 

AGENDA DATE: August 19, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation  

DEPARTMENT: Airport 

PREPARED BY: Paul Mehrlich, Executive Director of Aviation  

REQUEST: Presentation  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Presentation  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: PowerPoint  

 



July Board Information
19th August 2024

Authority Chair



Director’s Report



Expenditure - $1,088,076 40%

Revenues – $1,412,889 86%
Revenue less Subsidy - $737,111 45%

2nd QTR Budget Totals

Revenue - Expenditure - $351,879

2023

Total less Subsidy - $350,966



Parking Rev - $33,235 0% 

Operations – 1,575 -20%
Enplanements – 3,135 -26%

June 2024 Totals

Rental Car Rev - $25,109 0%
Load Factor – 79% 7%
Landing Fee Rev - $6,781  -16%

2023



2024 January February March April May June Totals

Avgas 2095 3104 4027 3443 3284 4438 20,391

Jet 43,870 40,525 52,589 53,902 62,673 58,007 311,566

TOTAL 45,965 43,629 56,616 57,345 65,957 62,445 331,957



0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Operations



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Enplanements



$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Parking Revenue



$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Rental Car Revenue



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Load Factor



 $-

 $5,000

 $10,000

 $15,000

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4

2022 2023 2024

Landing Fee Revenue



Next Board Meeting: Aug 22nd 2024 @ 9am

Jim E. Yates Terminal Board Meeting Room

2600 TXK Blvd #201, Texarkana AR



DIRECTOR’S REPORT  July 25, 2024 

   

 

UPDATES  

   
1. Terminal 

a. Terminal Phase 1 (Site work and Slab) – Completed 
b. Terminal Phase 2 (Building – Shell & Core) – Working on closing out this AIP 

grant (Grant 49). 
c. Terminal Phase 3 (Interior Completion) – Working on closing out this AIP grant 

(Grant 56). 
d. Terminal Phase 4 (Jet Bridges/Apron Paving/Landscaping) – Landscaping and 

final punch items are the only things left. Working on closing out this AIP grant 
(Grants 58 & 60) 

 
2. Apron  

a. Phase I - FAA closeout documents have been started along with an ADA grant 
application. 

b. Phase II - MCE has submitted an FAA grant application. 
i. Work Order #16 – Phase II Construction $252,611.87 to be paid out of the 

Phase II Grant, there will be no local match. - Motion 
 

3. Terminal Parking Lot 
a. Construction Phase I - Complete  
b. Construction Phase II – Lacking landscaping and some signage.  

i. We are working on options for the Solar Array, the best ROI is to utilize 
an MOU with AR Side. -Motion 

 
4. Terminal Access Road (Design Only)  

a. MCE is working on FAA closeouts and ADA grant application. 
 

5. Terminal Access Road (Construction)  
a. FAA grant 61 has been awarded for this project, Final Inspection will be 

scheduled after signage is installed. 
 

6. Taxiways and Apron Crack Seal 
a. Construction is complete. Final inspection is scheduled for July 25th. 

 
7. Environmental CATEX Documentation 

a. MCE submitted environmental documentation to the FAA in regard to the 
Runway 4-22 Strengthening (Overlay) and Taxiway Delta Widening projects and 
received FAA’s determination letter. 
 
 
 
 



DIRECTOR’S REPORT  July 25, 2024 

   

 

8. Runway 4 500’ Extension 
a. A coordination meeting with the FAA to start the move of the Localizer was held 

and design has begun. The survey has been completed and a geotechnical 
investigation is underway. 

b. FAA is requiring an obstruction survey be done for the new approach surfaces of 
the 500’ extension. MCE will complete this survey under Work Order #17 - 
$80,050 to be paid out of the extension grant. - Motion 

 
9. Real Estate 

a. Harvest Ministries – Completed.  
b. Leases for Avis and Hertz have agreed to new terms in 5-year leases. -Motion  

10. Operations 
a. Airshow MOU was approved by both cities. 

 
11. Engineering RFQ 

a. The Engineering selection committee consisted of a representative from the 
board, both cities, and staff. Top rated company was Garver and 2nd was 
McClelland Engineering. 

b. Per the Advisory Circular 150/5100-14E the airport is allowed to select both 
companies if we establish up front the projects, they will be responsible for. I am 
recommending since we will have a very large, complicated project in the next 
few years we utilize both companies to allow us to keep up the pace. -Motion 

i. Garver: 

1. Taxiway Widening Turns 
2. Taxilane 
3. Hangar 
4. Hangar Site Development (Dirt, Road, Utilities, Parking) 
5. Environmental Mitigation (Coordinate through Coffman 

Associates)  
6. Hangar Site Storm Water 
7. ARFF Truck Replacement 
8. On - Call Tasks not specifically called out for MCE in this list 

 
ii. McClelland Engineering: 

1. Runway 4/22 Extension 
2. MALSF Runway 4 
3. Runway 4/22 Overlay 
4. Taxiway D Extension 
5. Terminal Apron Phase III 
6. Service Animal Relief Area 

 



DIRECTOR’S REPORT  July 25, 2024 

   

 

 

12. Finances 

a. The budget committee met on July 15th and July 22nd. Draft 2025 budget was 
submitted for their review and comment.  

i. O&M Budget for 2025 - Motion 

ii. Capital Budget for 2025 - Motion  

b. Revenue -  $1,298,653 
Expense -  $2,716,979 
Total -   $1,418,325 
Capital -  $667,222 
AR –   $934,533.79   
TX -   $1,151,013.61  

c. New Rates and Fees schedule is ready for approval – Motion 

i. Fuel Flowage for 100LL was increased from $.07 to $.10 

ii. Fuel Flowage for Jet A was increased from $.07 to $.20 

iii. Parking rate of $10 for long term was held from previous lot, and a new 
$12 was established for short term.  

 
 

 
  



DIRECTOR’S REPORT  July 25, 2024 

   

 

 

Jun-24 
 Financial Notes 
 

  

  

  In May our O&M INCOME was: $222,779.15  

Our EXPENSES were: $162,731.97  

With a NET INCOME of: $60,047.18  

Transfer to Capital Improvement Acct. $0.00  

 
$60,047.18  

  Year To Date our O&M INCOME was: $1,420,918.95 

Our EXPENSES were: $1,483,327.65 

Total ($62,048.70) 

Grant Transfers to Capital Account $128,039.16 

Transfers to Capital LOC   

With a NET INCOME of : ($190,447.86) 

  As of May 31, 2024 
 TOTAL O&M CASH ON HAND was: $906,598.06 

 
 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting August 19, 2024. (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: September 3, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, August 19, 2024 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Danny 

Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO, PRESENT: City Attorney Josh Potter, City Clerk Heather Soyars, and Deputy City Clerk 

Jenny Narens.  

ABSENT: Acting City Manager Tyler Richards. 

Invocation given by Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by TWU Assistant Executive Director Kenny Icenhower. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

No one came forward. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Proclamation declaring August 19, 2024, as Judy Priest Day.  

CONSENT 

Assistant Mayor Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director 

Hollibush.  The motion carried and the following items were approved:  

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting August 5, 2024. (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

3. Resolution No. 2024-63 authorized the purchase of a 2025 Ford Explorer Police Interceptor 

to replace a damaged vehicle. (TAPD) Interim Police Chief Ed Chattaway 

REGULAR 

4. Resolution No. 2024-64 conditionally authorized the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Public 

Facilities Board to proceed with the issuance of approximately $24,000,000 of waterworks 

and sewer facilities revenue bonds. (TWU) Assistant Director Kenny Icenhower and Rose 

Law Firm Counsel Jim Fowler 



 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Hart, 

Seconded by Director Roberts.     

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

5. Resolution No. 2024-65 authorized the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract with 

Johnson Controls, Inc., to install an Advanced Metering Infrastructure System with a Leak 

Detection Monitoring System in combination with Satellite Based Leak Detection. (TWU) 

Assistant Executive Director Kenny Icenhower 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the made by Assistant Mayor Hart, Seconded by 

Director Brewer.     

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Resolution No. 2024-66 authorized the Acting City Manager to enter into a lease agreement 

with the Texarkana Regional Airport to apply for a loan from the Arkansas Energy Office for 

solar covered parking. [TABLED August 5, 2024] (AIRPORT) Director Paul Mehrlich  

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director 

Roberts.     

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, Director 

Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

Voting Nay: Director Harris 

The motion carried 6-1 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris said the Texarkana Metropolitan Planning Organization had been working on a 

connect to 2050 plan and the citizens would be able to give their input.    

Director Roberts wanted to say thank you to Roger Douglas and Traice Lee for a job well done 

since Tyler Richards became Acting City Manager.   

NEXT MEETING DATE: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Mayor requested an Executive Session to discuss city manager applicants.  The Board 

entered into Executive Session at 6:51 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:05 PM and no action was taken. 



 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Assistant Mayor Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Assistant Mayor Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:06 PM. 

APPROVED this the 3rd day of September 2024. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to amend Resolution No. 2024-61, the FY2025 

Airport Budget to include the removal of the real estate position. 

(AIRPORT) Director Paul Mehrlich 

AGENDA DATE: September 3, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Airport 

PREPARED BY: Paul Mehrlich, Airport Director  

REQUEST: To amend the FY2025 Airport Budget to include the removal of the real 

estate position.  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: To amend the FY2025 Airport Budget to include the removal of the real 

estate position. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED:   

AMOUNT BUDGETED:   

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

  

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

  

EXHIBITS: Resolution and the amended FY2025 Airport Budget  

 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2024-61, approved the FY2025 Airport Budget; and  

WHEREAS, since the resolution’s passing, the Airport wishes to modify the 

budget by removing the real estate position and it is necessary to amend Resolution No. 

2024-61, to include the amended FY2025 Airport Budget; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

that Resolution No. 2024-61, is amended to include the FY2025 Airport Budget without 

the real estate position and the same is hereby approved as amended.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of September, 2024. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown 

 

 

 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED:  

 

 

_______________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



2023 Budget 2023 Actual 2024 Budget 2024 Actual 2024 EoY Est 2025 Budget

Income

40000 · Revenues 271,296$                     -$                              -$                              

40001 · Small Building Revenue 42,825$                    42,478$                    43,815$                       18,581$                        37,163$                        -$                                 

40002 · FBO Revenue 116,150$                  105,431$                  105,432$                     52,716$                        105,431$                      106,486$                     

40003 · Ground Revenue/Aircraft Sto Fee 48,400$                    36,733$                    26,000$                       15,706$                        15,706$                        26,000$                       

40004 · Hangar Revenue 163,200$                  170,978$                  163,992$                     85,120$                        170,240$                      171,000$                     

40005 · House Revenue 57,600$                    61,600$                    57,600$                       25,200$                        50,400$                        -$                                 

40006 · Fuel Flowage Revenue 51,000$                    55,532$                    58,584$                       26,565$                        53,130$                        122,000$                     

40007 · Interest/Late Charge Revenue -$                               -$                               -$                                 -$                                  -$                                 

40008 · Landing Fees Revenue 71,600$                    83,784$                    75,000$                       34,612$                        69,225$                        80,000$                       

40009 · Misc. Revenue - Other 5,000$                      859,044$                  5,000$                         40,437$                        40,437$                        5,000$                         

40010 · Parking Revenue 334,584$                  351,062$                  330,000$                     189,731$                      379,462$                      360,000$                     

40011 · Airline Office Revenue 35,370$                    35,370$                    35,370$                       17,685$                        35,370$                        37,104$                       

40012 · Rental Car Revenue 300,635$                  281,950$                  280,000$                     143,438$                      286,876$                      280,000$                     

40013 · TSA Building Rents - Other 50,000$                    52,231$                    51,662$                       27,093$                        54,186$                        52,231$                       

40015 · Fuel Tax Income 32,000$                    73,243$                    60,000$                       21,093$                        42,186$                        72,000$                       

40016 · Cities Subsidy -$                               773,390$                  675,779$                      1,351,557$                   

40017 · Advertising Revenue 6,500$                      9,560$                      5,000$                         8,183$                          16,366$                        112,000$                     

40018 · Mooring Fee -$                               -$                               -$                                 -$                                  -$                                  -$                                 

40019 · LEO Grant Reimbursement -$                               36,480$                    43,560$                       14,560$                        14,560$                        -$                                 

40020 · Miller County Tax Passthru 26,000$                    30,504$                    26,000$                       33,002$                        33,002$                        30,000$                       

40021 · Freight Loading Charges -$                               -$                               -$                                 -$                                  -$                                 

40022 · Building Utilities 4,000$                      11,504$                    4,000$                         10,327$                        20,654$                        11,000$                       

40023 · Terminal Vending -$                               383$                          -$                                 127$                             254$                             300$                            

40024  · Lease Revenue 159,472$                  -$                                  

Total 40000 · Revenues 1,344,864$               3,230,730$               1,642,311$                  737,111$                      2,776,206$                   1,465,121$                  

Expense

50000 · Administration Expense

50001 · Advertising & Promotion 100,000$                  100,299$                  80,000$                       63,904$                        127,808$                      60,000$                       

50002 · Drug Testing 400$                          529$                          400$                            706$                             1,411$                          400$                            

50003 · Dues & Subscriptions 7,500$                      5,811$                      7,500$                         3,265$                          6,530$                          7,500$                         

50004 · Employee Training-Other 2,000$                      3,150$                      2,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  2,000$                         

50005 · Interest Expense/Debt Service 60,000$                    21,592$                    230,000$                     26,211$                        52,421$                        -$                                 

50006 · Legal & Accounting Expense 30,000$                    35,517$                    30,000$                       5,200$                          10,400$                        35,000$                       

50008 · Mileage 1,000$                      667$                          1,000$                         519$                             1,037$                          1,000$                         

50009 · Office Support 7,000$                      10,147$                    14,000$                       20,362$                        40,724$                        14,000$                       

50010 · Miscellaneous 8,000$                      8,231$                      8,000$                         1,764$                          3,529$                          8,000$                         

50011 · Parking Expense 5,000$                      1,899$                      5,000$                         316$                             632$                             5,000$                         

50012 · Service Charges 10,000$                    16,887$                    10,000$                       9,663$                          19,326$                        17,000$                       



50013 · Travel & Training Seminars 11,000$                    17,935$                    11,000$                       12,495$                        24,990$                        18,000$                       

50014 · Consulting Fees 4,000$                      -$                               4,000$                         2,000$                          4,000$                          4,000$                         

50015 · FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 1,000$                      -$                               1,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  1,000$                         

50022 · Depredation 500$                          750$                          500$                            475$                             950$                             750$                            

50023 · Terminal Vending 1,000$                      113$                          1,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  1,000$                         

50024 · EOC Admin. & Training Cost 25,121$                    25,121$                    25,121$                       12,562$                        25,123$                        -$                                 

Total 50000 · Administration Expense 273,521$                  248,649$                  430,521$                     159,441$                      318,882$                      174,650$                     

50100 · Liability Insurance Expense

50102 · Airport Liability Ins. Other 8,400$                      9,470$                      10,000$                       9,470$                          9,470$                          10,000$                       

50103 · Property/Auto Ins 51,922$                    60,261$                    62,000$                       67,482$                        67,482$                        118,000$                     

Total 50100 · Liability Insurance Expense 60,322$                    69,731$                    72,000$                       76,952$                        76,952$                        128,000$                     

50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense

50202 · Airside Components 10,000$                    15,938$                    126,000$                     26,413$                        52,826$                        120,000$                     

50203 · Buildings 30,000$                    43,459$                    35,000$                       17,725$                        35,450$                        35,000$                       

50204 · Airfield Lighting 10,000$                    3,970$                      10,000$                       1,985$                          3,970$                          10,000$                       

50205 · Gates / Fences 45,000$                    22,639$                    200,000$                     6,226$                          12,452$                        180,000$                     

50206 · Houses 10,000$                    1,167$                      10,000$                       -$                                  -$                                  -$                                 

50207 · Misc. 1,000$                      549$                          5,000$                         578$                             1,157$                          5,000$                         

50208 · T-Hangars 51,400$                    30,560$                    48,000$                       19,452$                        38,903$                        48,000$                       

50209 · Tools 19,500$                    8,291$                      25,000$                       1,019$                          2,037$                          25,000$                       

50210 · Tractors, Mules, Forklift etc. 12,000$                    19,699$                    12,000$                       11,934$                        23,869$                        12,000$                       

50211 · Vehicles & Trailers 4,000$                      8,370$                      4,000$                         1,290$                          2,579$                          4,000$                         

50212 · Environmental 500$                          -$                               500$                            499$                             997$                             500$                            

50213 · Snow & Ice Removal/ Flood Damage 2,000$                      -$                               2,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  2,000$                         

50214 · FAA/TSA Mandated Expenses 4,000$                      446$                          9,700$                         5,170$                          10,339$                        9,700$                         

50215  · ADA Grant Matches

Total 50200 · Build. & Grounds Maint. Expense 199,400$                  155,088$                  487,200$                     92,290$                        184,580$                      451,200$                     

50300 · Landside Consumables Expense

50301 · Fuel 8,000$                      7,879$                      8,000$                         2,709$                          5,418$                          8,000$                         

50302 · Janitorial Supplies 5,000$                      6,279$                      5,500$                         2,847$                          5,695$                          5,500$                         

50303 · Landscaping 1,000$                      1,000$                      9,000$                         350$                             700$                             9,000$                         

50304 · Maint. Shop Supplies 2,000$                      2,147$                      2,000$                         302$                             604$                             2,000$                         

50305 · Rental Expense 1,000$                      -$                               1,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  1,000$                         

50306 · Uniforms 1,200$                      1,649$                      1,200$                         402$                             805$                             1,200$                         

Total 50300 · Landside Consumables Expense 18,200$                    18,954$                    26,700$                       6,611$                          13,221$                        26,700$                       

50400 · Payroll Expenses

50401 · AR Unemployment Tax (ALL) 4,000$                      384$                          4,000$                         281$                             563$                             4,000$                         



50402 · Admin. Group Insurance 50,000$                    49,733$                    50,000$                       17,468$                        34,937$                        50,000$                       

50403 · Payroll Taxes (ALL) 60,317$                    64,873$                    62,730$                       32,891$                        65,781$                        62,730$                       

50404 · Retirement 69,532$                    -$                                 26,002$                        52,005$                        

50405 · Admin. Payroll 475,615$                  443,825$                  582,883$                     251,858$                      503,716$                      528,699$                     

50406 · Admin. Workers Comp. 5,000$                      1,721$                      5,000$                         2,248$                          4,496$                          5,000$                         

50408 · Vacation & Sick Leave -$                               36,653$                    30,000$                       12,526$                        25,053$                        30,000$                       

50409 · Other (ALL) 300$                          -$                               300$                            -$                                  300$                            

50411 · Accrued Payroll 8,500$                      -$                               8,500$                         -$                                  8,500$                         

50413 · Admin. Longevity 10,560$                    10,560$                    12,000$                       -$                                  11,050$                       

50415 · ADA Employee Agreement -$                               -$                               -$                                 -$                                  -$                                 

50416 · APERS (All) 103,129$                  -$                               126,683$                     8,932$                          17,865$                        126,683$                     

50400 · Admin Payroll Expenses Other 100$                          -$                               100$                            413$                             413$                             413$                            

Total 50400 · Payroll Expenses 717,521$                  677,282$                  882,196$                     352,620$                      704,827$                      827,375$                     

50500 · Permits & Taxes

50501 · Miller County Taxes 40,000$                    43,552$                    40,000$                       46,648$                        46,648$                        44,000$                       

50502 · Sales Tax 27,500$                    35,333$                    27,500$                       15,728$                        15,728$                        36,000$                       

50503 · Permits & Taxes -Other 725$                          700$                          725$                            -$                                  725$                            

Total 50500 · Permits & Taxes 68,225$                    79,585$                    68,225$                       62,376$                        62,376$                        80,725$                       

50600 · Utilities

50602 · Communications 34,000$                    30,914$                    34,000$                       10,013$                        20,026$                        20,000$                       

50603 · Electricity 75,000$                    102,442$                  100,000$                     36,990$                        73,980$                        20,000$                       

50604 · Gas 3,500$                      5,303$                      13,000$                       2,616$                          5,232$                          1,000$                         

50605 · Water 16,000$                    19,928$                    20,000$                       11,747$                        23,493$                        5,000$                         

Total 50600 · Utilities 128,500$                  158,588$                  167,000$                     61,366$                        122,731$                      46,000$                       

50700 · ARFF Expenses

50702 · ARFF Office Support 300$                          140$                          300$                            1,225$                          2,449$                          3,000$                         

50703 · ARFF Communications 1,800$                      1,111$                      1,800$                         550$                             1,101$                          1,500$                         

50704 · ARFF Fuel 2,500$                      6,236$                      2,500$                         -$                                  6,000$                         

50705 · ARFF Group Insurance 42,000$                    38,309$                    42,000$                       19,129$                        38,257$                        42,000$                       

50706 · ARFF Mileage 1,000$                      876$                          1,000$                         806$                             1,613$                          1,000$                         

50707 · ARFF Payroll 197,553$                  246,460$                  203,500$                     131,545$                      263,090$                      203,500$                     

50708 · ARFF Retirement -$                               38,802$                    -$                                 15,410$                        30,819$                        

50709 · ARFF Supplies 3,400$                      2,238$                      3,400$                         3,467$                          6,934$                          3,000$                         

50710 · ARFF Tools & Equipment 1,000$                      1,240$                      1,000$                         385$                             770$                             10,000$                       

50711 · ARFF Training 1,600$                      1,887$                      1,600$                         5,175$                          10,350$                        1,600$                         

50712 · ARFF Truck Repair 6,000$                      18,862$                    6,000$                         4,442$                          8,884$                          15,000$                       

50713 · ARFF Uniforms 1,500$                      2,251$                      1,500$                         400$                             800$                             2,000$                         

50714 · ARFF Utilities 15,000$                    20,446$                    15,000$                       8,497$                          16,995$                        15,000$                       



50715 · ARFF Workers Comp. 5,000$                      4,160$                      5,000$                         4,765$                          9,530$                          5,000$                         

50716 · Public Safety Building 8,000$                      59,090$                    8,000$                         11,081$                        22,163$                        10,000$                       

50717 · ARFF Misc. 800$                          32$                            800$                            1,504$                          3,008$                          800$                            

50718 - ARFF Longevity 10,560$                    10,560$                    11,200$                       -$                                  11,900$                       

Total 50700 · ARFF Expenses 298,013$                  452,699$                  304,600$                     208,381$                      416,763$                      331,300$                     

50700 · LEO Expenses

50730 · LEO Payroll 115,284$                  121,949$                  135,000$                     55,922$                        111,844$                      135,000$                     

50731 · LEO Office Support 400$                          -$                               400$                            3,005$                          6,011$                          400$                            

50732 · LEO Communications 600$                          597$                          600$                            601$                             1,202$                          600$                            

50733 · LEO Misc. 50$                            -$                               50$                              41$                               41$                               50$                              

50734 · LEO Workers Comp. 1,500$                      1,088$                      1,500$                         1,834$                          3,668$                          1,500$                         

50735 · LEO Training & Equipment -$                               -$                               -$                                 5,569$                          11,137$                        5,569$                         

50736 · LEO Longevity 5,280$                      5,440$                      6,080$                         -$                                  6,800$                         

Total 50700 · LEO Expenses 123,114$                  129,074$                  143,630$                     66,972$                        133,904$                      149,919$                     

50800 · Terminal Expenses

50801 · Terminal Communications 12,000$                       1,068$                          2,137$                          24,000$                       

50802 · Terminal Electricity 70,000$                       -$                                  140,000$                     

50803 · Terminal Gas 16,000$                       -$                                  32,000$                       

50804 · Terminal Water 10,000$                       -$                                  20,000$                       

50802 · Building Maint. 15,000$                       -$                                  30,000$                       

50803 · Janitorial 10,000$                       -$                                  20,000$                       

50804 · Terminal Landscaping 7,500$                         -$                                  80,000$                       

50804 · Terminal Décor -$                                 -$                                  10,000$                       

Total 50800 · Terminal Expenses -$                               -$                               140,500$                     1,068$                          2,137$                          356,000$                     

Grant Passthrough 660,722$                  

Total Expense 1,886,816$               2,650,371$               2,722,572$                  1,088,076$                   2,036,372$                   2,571,869$                  

Revenues - Expenditures (541,952)$          580,359$           (1,080,261)$         351,879$              739,833$              (1,106,747)$         

O&M Cost Shares FY22 Budget FY23 Budget FY24 Budget

Texarkana, TX 299,103$            596,196$              610,814$              

Texarkana, AR 242,849$            484,065$              495,933$              

Capital Budget 2,017,419.00$     357,201.82$        

*(See Attached Sheet) 1,565,921.00$     290,020.18$        

Total Local Capital Match 3,583,340.00$     647,222.00$        



Total Budget 2,613,615.05$     968,015.59$        

2,049,985.95$     785,953.59$        

Population Ratio

55.19%

44.81%



Capital Budget

Project/Item Amount

John Deer Tractor 55,000.00$    

Chevy 2500 MX Truck 65,000.00$    

ODO 2 - Runway 4 & Taxiway D Extension - Design

BIL #2 - ARFF Truck

MRO Site Development 200,000.00$  

MRO Site Development 75,000.00$    

Service Animal Relief Area 22,222.00$    

Debt Service 230,000.00$  

647,222.00$  



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) 

FY2024-2025 Budget.  (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith and 

Finance Director Tricia Briggs 

AGENDA DATE: September 3, 2024 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Tricia Briggs, Finance Director 

REQUEST: Approve TWU FY2024-2025 Budget 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approve TWU FY2024-2025 Budget 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and TWU FY2024-2025 Budget 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

WHEREAS, the FY2024-2025 Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) Budget has been 

submitted to the Board of Directors for review; and 

WHEREAS, the TWU staff recommends approval of the budget as presented to 

the Board with the income and expense allocations set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and TWU staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the FY2024-2025 TWU Budget, attached hereto and made a 

part hereof, is hereby approved. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of September, 2024. 

 

 

______________________________       

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

______________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 





TABLE OF CONTENTS 

COMMONLY USED TWU BUDGET ABBREVIATIONS 

SECTION I - REVENUE FUNDS 

Appropriated Fund Balance…………………………………………………………………….1 

Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary (AR, TX, GP, MN & UN Funds) ……………………2  

Combined AR, TX, GP, MN & UN Funds (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………….3-5 

Combined TX & GP Funds (Contains Interfund Transfers)……………………………….6-7 

Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary TX Fund (G.P. is excluded) ……………………...8 

Texas Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………………9-10

2025 Budgeted Revenues for TX Funds ……………………………………………………11 

2025 Budgeted Expenditures for TX Funds………………………………………………..12  

G.P. Water Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ……………………………….13  

Revenues vs. Expenditures Summary (AR, MN & UN Funds) …………………………….14 

Combined Arkansas, Mandeville & Union Funds (Contains lnterfund Transfers)……15-16 

Arkansas Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers)………………………….17-18  

2025 Budgeted Revenues for AR Funds …………………………………………..………..19 

2025 Budgeted Expenditures for AR Funds………………………………………………..20 

Mandeville Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ………………………………..21

Union Revenue Fund (Contains lnterfund Transfers) ………………………………………22 

SECTION II - BOND FUNDS 

Arkansas 2001 Bond Fund ……………………………………………………………..23 

Arkansas 2004-A Bond Fund (MNDVL & UN) ……………………………………………….24 

Arkansas 2004-B Bond Fund (AR, MNDVL & UN) ………………………………………....25 

Arkansas 2007 Refunding Bond Fund ……………………………………………………....26 

Arkansas 2007 Bond Reserve Fund …………………………………………………….…….27 

Arkansas 2023 Bond Fund……………………………………………………………………28 

Arkansas 2024 Bond Fund……………………………………………………………………29 

Texas 2013 Bond Fund ……………………………………………………………………….30 

Texas 2023 Bond Fund …………………………………………………………………………31 

Texas Bond Reserve Fund ……………………………………………………………………..32 



 
 

 

SECTION Ill - CAPITAL FUNDS 

 

Arkansas Capital Improvement Fund ………………………………………………………..33 

Arkansas Infrastructure Fund ………………………………………………………………….34 

Arkansas Millwood Water Rights Fund ……………………………………………………...35 

2023 Arkansas Bond Construction…………………………………………………………...36 

2024 Arkansas Bond Construction…………………………………………………………...37 

Arkansas Personnel Policy Fund …………………………………………………………….38 

Millwood WTP Depreciation Fund ……………………………………………………….39-40 

North Texarkana WWTP Depreciation Fund ………………………………………………...41 

Mandeville Depreciation Fund ……………………………………………………………….42 

Union Depreciation Fund ……………………………………………………………………….43 

Texas Capital Improvement Fund …………………………………………………..44 

Texas Infrastructure Fund …………………………………………………………………….45 

Wright Patman COE Cost Fund ……………………………………………………………...46 

2023 Texas Bond Construction………………………………………………………………47 

Texas Personnel Policy Fund …………………………………………………………...48 

Waggoner Creek Capital Improvement Fund …………………………………………49 

LTWSC Capital Improvement Fund ……………………………………………………..50-51 

South Regional WWTP Depreciation Fund ………………………………………...52-53 

Composting Fund ……………………………………………………………………………54-55 

Equipment Acquisition Fund ……………………………………………………………...56-63 

Technology Fund …………………………………………………………………………..64-75 

Technology Accumulated Reserves……………………………………………………………76  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

SECTION IV - OPERATING BUDGETS 

 

TWU Organization Chart ………………………………………………………………………..77

TWU Personnel Schedule Summary ………………………………………………………78-81

2025 Budgeted O&M Expenditures (All Funds) ………………………………………………82 

TWU Operating Budget Comparison with Variance Explanations (All Funds) ……………..83 

Administration – 110 ………………………………………………………………………...84-86 

Accounting – 210 …………………………………………………………………………....87-89 

Information Technology – 230 ……………………………………………………………...90-92 

Customer Service – 310 …………………………………………………………………....93-95 

Field Services - 330 …………………………………………………………………………96-98 

Wright Patman Water Treatment Plant – 410 …………………………………………….99-102 

Millwood Water Treatment Plant – 420 …………………………………………………103-105 

Water Distribution - Graphic Packaging (formerly International Paper) – 490 ………106-108 

Waggoner Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 520 …………………………………109-111 

South Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant – 530 ……………………………………112-114 

North Texarkana Wastewater Treatment Plant – 540 ………………………………….115-117 

Composting – 580 ………………………………………………………………………...118-120 

Field Operations/Administration – 610 ………………………………………………….121-123 

Water/Sewer Construction – 612 ………………………………………………………,124-126 

Water Distribution – 620 …………………………………………………………………127-129 

Sewer Collection – 630 …………………………………………………………………..130-132 

Fleet Services Center – 640 ……………………………………………………………,,133-135 

Engineering Design – 710 ………………………………………………………………..136-139 

Engineering - Infiltration & Inflow Abatement – 720 ……………………………………140-142 

GIS Development- 740 …………………………………………………………………...143-145 

Environmental Services – 750 …………………………………………………………...146-149 

Leary - 830/831 …………………………………………………………………………...150-154 

Miller County Public Water Authority - 833/834 ……………………………………….155-159 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

SECTION V - DEBT SERVICES 

 

Combined Arkansas and Texas 

All Revenue Bonds ………………………………………………………………………….....160 

 

Arkansas Revenue Bonds 

All Revenue Bonds …………………………………………………………………………….161 

2004-B Water Facilities Improvement Revenue Bond ……………………………………...162 

2007 Waterworks Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds …………………………………….163 

2023 Waterworks Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds …………………………………….164 

 

Texas Revenue Bonds 

All Revenue Bonds …………………………………………………………………………….165 

2013 Waterworks & Sewer System Revenue Bonds ……………………………………….166 

2023 Waterworks & Sewer System Revenue Bonds ……………………………………….167







2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167


	Top
	1.	service awards
	item_090320242024_ccd_employee service awards

	2.	airport presentation
	item_2_08192024_airport_presentation
	item_2_08192024_airport_Board Presentation - July 2024 - City Version
	item_2_08192024_airport_Directors Report July 2024 - City Version

	3.	minutes
	item_09032024_ccd_minutes
	item_3_08192024_ccd_minutes

	4.	airport fy2025 budget (amended)
	item_4_09032024_airport_amend budget
	item_4_amended airport budget
	item_08192024_airport_2025 Airport Budget - City AR Version

	5.	twu budget
	item_09032024_twu_budget
	item_5_Water Budget
	item_5_09032024_twu_2025 BUDGET DRAFT

	Bottom

